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May 27, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into a subgrant with the New Hampshire
Public Defender (Vendor #155941 BOOl), Concord, NH, in an amount not to exceed $50,000,
from the United States Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (Byrne JAG) for the purpose of supporting a social
worker to work with defendants in drug-related cases, effective July 1, 2025 through June 30,
2026 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is anticipated to be available in Fiscal Year 2026, upon continued appropriation
of funds in the future operating budget, as follows:

02-20-20-201510-44580000 FY2026

Bvme JAG

072-500575, Grants Federal $50,000

EXPLANATION

The Department of Justice requests authorization to award a subgrant to the New
Hampshire Public Defender. The funds will be utilized to support a Master Social Work (MSW)
Advocate whose primary mission will be to assist public defender clients in obtaining in-patient
or intensive outpatient treatment for substance use disorder.

The Byrne JAG Grant Program is a federal formula grant the Department of Justice
receives for the purpose of supporting law enforcement initiatives. One requirement for the
grant is the formulation and implementation of a five-year strategic plan. In December 2018, the
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Department of Justice formed a steering committee. Members of the committee represented law
enforcement, prosecution, courts, public defenders, corrections, parole and probation, and reentry
services.

The Byrne JAG steering committee formed a strategic plan and defined needs for funding
that would best benefit the state. Committee members voted to provide funds to the New
Hampshire Public Defenders Office for a MSW.

The MSW works with treatment providers throughout New Hampshire and identifies
housing options for public defender clients struggling with substance use disorder. The MSW
position also assists in helping public defender clients meet court ordered requirements. In
addition, this position will supervise up to seven social worker interns providing additional
services to public defender clients.

If federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support
this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted.

Jdhn M. Formella

Attorney General

#5056829



FORM NUMBERG-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

1 Granite Place South, Concord. NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

New Hampshire Public Defender

1.4. Grantee Address

10 Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone H

(603) 224-1236

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-4458-072-

500575

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2026

1.8. Grant Limitation

$50,000

1.9. Grant OfTicer for State Agency

Thomas Kaempfer

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-0993

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this fonn we certify that we have complied with any public
meetine/m^uirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 3l;9S-b."

1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1ntec Mgl.LL na

ee SignG re 2

m
Grant Signature 3

laec lev

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

mn /ha;l>iW- 64 CMcon .Fmnoc. 0-
Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.14. Name& Title of State Agency Signor(s)
Thomas D. Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Admin

l?5

1.13 Smte A^ncy Signature(s)

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Sut>stance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: / /5/14/25

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as ̂'the Project").
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4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2,

s.i.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.)

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1

AREA COVERED. Except as oiheiwise jpcciftcaliy provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perfonn the Pro)ect in. and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2
EFFECTIVE DATE: CQMPt.ETION OF PROJECT..

This Agreement, end ail obligations oF the parties hereunder. shall become
efleciive on the dote on the date oFapproval oF this Agreement by the Governor
and Council oF the State oF New Hampshire iF required (block 1.16). or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as oiherwise'specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreemenj, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinaner reFerrcd to as "the Completion Date*').
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is tdentincd and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C.
attached hereto. ~ 9.5.
The manner oF. and schedule oFpayment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C. ̂
In accordance with the provisions set Forth in EXHIBIT C. end in consideration 10.
oF the saiisFactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subpaiagraph 5.5 of these getteral provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise

payable to the Grantee under this subparagiapb 5.3 those sums required, or
permhied. lo be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7>c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only; and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses. oF whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to iheGranteeForihc Project. The State shall have no Uabilhies to II.
the Grantee other than t^ Grant Amount. II. I.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, I I.I.I
or actually made, hereunder e.xcced the Grant limiwion set Forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGUlJkTIQNS In 11.1.4
connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of Federal; state, county,' or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations orduty upon the Grantee, including 11.2.1
the acquisition of any and ail necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS

Between the Effeccive Date and the date sevctt (7) years aOer the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grattt terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in conncctiun with the 11.2.2
Project, including, but not limited to. costs of adminlsiraiion, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials bikI services. Such accounts
shall be supported b)' receipts, invoices, bills and other similar doeumenu.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the giant terms or the Agency pursuant lo II.2.3
subparagraph 7.1. at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the Slate shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (a.s that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined); and other informauon relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph. "Grantee" includes all persons.,
natural or ficiidnal, afTlIiated wkh. controlled by. or under common ownership
with, (he entity 'tdeniified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12.2. '
the Project, The Grantee warrants thai all personnel engaged in the Project shall
bequalifttd to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontnctor. subgrantcc, 12.3;
or other person, firm or corporation with whom'it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual retalionship with
the State, or who is a Slate officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Oftlcer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. Irt the event
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of this Agreement the Grant 12.4.
OffKer. and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA; RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things 13.
developed or obtained dui'ing the performance of. or acquired or developed by
reason of. this Agreement, iitcluding, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files.
Formulae, surveys, maps,' charts, sound recordings, vid» recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawirigs. analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, kllers, memoranda, paper, artd
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by it. unrestricted access to all data For
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or For any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United Slates or any other counliy by
anyone other than the State.
On and afler the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
From the State or purchased with Funds provided For that purpose urrdcr this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, ond shall be returned to the Sutte
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use. in whole or in part, oil data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT, Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hmunder in excess of such available or appropriated
FuimIs. In the event of a reduction or terminaiion of those furHts, the Stare sitall

have the right to withhold payment until such Funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right lo terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES.

Any one or more oFihe Following acts or omissioRS of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform (he Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or
Failure to submit'any repon required hereunder'or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hereunder: or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement,
Upon the occurrence ofany Event oFDefault. the State may take any otk. or ntore.
or all. of the following actions:
Give (he Grantee a written notice specifying the Event oFDefault and requiring it
to be remedied within, in (he absertce of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice: >nd if the Event of Dcfauii is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreenwnt,effecitve two (2) days after giving the
Grantee not'ice of terminaiion; and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during (he period
from the date of such notice until such lime as the State determines that the

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee: and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe lo (he Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason ofany Event of Default; artd
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION..

In the event ofany early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant OfTlcer. not
later than fifteen (IS) days after the dale of lemtinaiion. a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termmation Repon") describing In detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date oftermination,
(n the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Repon by the State shall entitle
the Gtantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.'

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Repon by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligat'tons
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written noikc
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No olTrccr, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, flfflcer or employee of the Stale of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibililies in the review or
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t7.2.

14.

IS.

16.

17

17,1

17.1 i

17.1.2

18.

19.

20.

spproval or the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in
any decision relating to this Agreement whkh alTccis his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or Indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereor.
GRANTCE-S RKLATION TO THE STATE. In (he performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of (he State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its onkers.
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the Stale nor are the>' entitled to any of the benefib. workmen's
compensation or emoiumenu provided by the Sate to ib employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise trarufer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Sute. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrantcd by the Cmntce other than as set fonh in Exhibit B without (he prior
wrinen conseni of the Suic.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the Sate, ib officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
b)' the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties assened against the Sute. ib officers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of, based on. resulting from, arising out of (or whkh
may be claimed to arise out oO the acb or omissions of the Grantee or
sutKontroctor. or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithsanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe
sovereign immunity of the Sate, which immuniiy is hereby reserved to the Sate.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at iu own expense, obuin and mainuin in force, or shall
require an)' subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and mainuin in force, both for the benefit of the Sate, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the F^ject. and
General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounu not less than SI.IWO.OQO per occurrence and S2.000.000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and S500,<X)0 for property
damage in anyone incidcTUfand

22.

23,

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters accepuble
to the Sate, and authorized to do business in the Sute ofNew Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the Sute, certificates of insurance for all renewalfs) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to (he expiration
date of each insurmcc policy.
WAIVER QF BREACH. No failure by the Suic to enforce any provisions hereof
aflcr any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of iu rights with regard to
that Event, or any subseqtKnt Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the Sute to enforce cMh and all of the
provtsioru hereof upon any further or other default on the part of (he Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by cettiHed mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Sutcs Post OfTicc addressed to the parties at (he addresses
Erst above given.
AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by (he parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment. <xiiiver or discharge by the Goverttor and Counei! of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing Sate Agency.
CQNSTRUCTtON OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the Sute of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a pan ofthis Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parries hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
end this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benelli.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which rr«y be c.xecutcd in a number
of countciperts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and undersunding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreemenu and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part uf this agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

New Hampshire Public Defender as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrecipient")

shall be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below,

which are subject to annual review. '

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful

access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may

entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when

necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them

comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at
wvvw.lcp.gov.

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale

administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the

receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the

Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a

copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants

Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of

Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information

regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-righls.htm and understand if you are awarded

funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the
Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)

with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34

U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C.

§ 11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § l2291(bX13)); the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42

U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§1681, 1683, 1685-

86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with

Ex. Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community
Organizations; Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Partnerships With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ
implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that

paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior

approval requests require additional justification.

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH

Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or
be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly

managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the

grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future

years.

7. Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds-prohibited and controlled equipment
under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, "Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and

Criminal Justice Practices To Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety," OJP has prohibited

the use of federal funds under this award for purchases or transfers of specified equipment by
taw enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any subrecipient

("subgrantee") at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under

this award to acquire or transfer any property identified on the "controlled equipment" list.

The details of the requirement are posted on the OJP web site at

hitps;//www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled«equipment (Award condition:

Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds-prohibited and controlled equipment
under OJP awards), and are incorporated by reference here.

Page 5 of 45 ^
Subrecipient Initials /lyv ̂

Date



EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

8. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in

certain "education programs."

9. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit,

under specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the

employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a

gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and

specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a
federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native

language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this

award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for
guidance.

10. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2

C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the

"Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2022 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. Ifthis

FY 2022 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number

(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements

apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and

regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are

obligated on or af^er the acceptance date of this FY 2022 award.
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EXHIBIT A

- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
OJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at

hUns://oin.t2ov/fundini!/Part200UniformRequireinents.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantec") at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the
dale of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a difTerenl retention period

applies - and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must
provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial

records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2
C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared
or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the
provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP promptly for
clarification.

1 1. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences,

meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior

approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for

expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of
food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this
award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

12. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness

of work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within

the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written ^
guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results

Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

13. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

(

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide arc to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as

posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at

https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be
posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

14. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY

2022)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent

restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations

Act, 2022, arc set out at httDs://vvww.oip.gov/fiindini£/Expl6re/

FV22AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a

subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the

recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior

written approval of OJP.

15. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -28 C.F.R.
Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically

including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and

prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of

discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or

refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and

requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that

engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements

that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.
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The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations
(currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to
Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

16. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as

determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient does not satisfactorily and promptly

address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by

the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,

investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

17. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any

assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct

during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ")
may determine that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements
otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions regarding enforcement, including any

such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during the period of

performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal
Notices: Special circumstances as to particular award conditions"
(ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and incorporated by reference into

the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient
official accepts all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally
executed by the authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or

on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements - whether a condition set out in full
below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to

conduct during the award period - may result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to
the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds, disallow
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costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other legal action

as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to
this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal
prosecution (including under I8U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273),

and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims

or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801 -3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by
its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly
invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

18. Compliance with DOi regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in

Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

19. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to

use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and

its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs
(MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

20. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States
that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or
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any subrccipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual

who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)( I).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or

will be involved in activities under this award of both -

1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(I) that, generally
speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for

employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this
condition to be notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility

verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)( I).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200

Uniform Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility

verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with

Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent

notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance
with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award

funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocabic costs (if any) of
actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process
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Por purposes of this condition, persons "who arc or will be involved in activities

under this award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all recipient

(or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the

hiring process with respect to a position that is or wilt be funded (in whole or in

part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification

of employment eligibility, the recipient (or any subrecipient) may choose to

participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-vcrify.gov), provided an appropriate

person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify

(and follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the event of a

"Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfiimation") to confirm

employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico,

Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the

Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient,

any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal
law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to

relieve any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of

any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify

visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Vcrify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at
EVerifvEmDloverAgent@dhs.^ov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before

award acceptance. '
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21. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier - develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training

Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at

^lUps://www■oip■uov/fundin^'/implemcnt/traininlI-^Iuidin^-pri^ciplcs-^rantees-and-
suburat^tccs.

22. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated - in the application for the
award (as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ
funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute ~ that a purpose of some
or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless
of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at
hllp.s://oip.uovMindinii/E.>cplore/lnteract-Minors.htm

(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals
who may interact with participating minors), and arc incorporated by reference here.

23. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OV W, as appropriate) during the period of performance for
this award, if the recipient is designated as "highrisk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk
grantee list.

24. Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have
successfully completed an "OJP financial management and grant administration training" by
120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the award. Successful completion of
such a training on or after October 15, 2020, will satisfy this condition.
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In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award

changes during the period of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial

Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP financial management and grant
administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator

enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants.
Successful completion of such a training on or after October 15, 2020, will satisfy this
condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant

administration training" for purposes of this condition is available at

https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition include a session

on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if
the recipient fails to comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may

lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on this award.

25. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any

employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that

prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance

with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a

federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award,

to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified

information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other

form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified

information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient—

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality

agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or
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oiherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or

contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees

or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as

described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds,,

will provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making this award,

and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"),

procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that—

1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes
may or will receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"),

procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either

requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from

employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict

(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting

waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to

support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or
subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring

its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or

otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or

abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award

funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the federal

agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such

obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.
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26. Rcclassiflcation of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September L 20! 7, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.

Code were editorially reclassifled (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled

"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of

statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements),
including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory

provision that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a

reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction

specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in material

incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award

requirements.

27. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (Pll)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to

respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-I7-I2) if it (or a

subrecipient) - (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates,

discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PI!)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the

scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal

information system" (0MB Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a

requirement to report actual or imminent breach of Pll to an OJP Program Manager no later

than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

28. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making

agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ,

currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the

recipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OJP by email at

OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes

any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the

recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.

The recipient's disclosure must include the following: I. The federal awarding agency that

currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient was designated high risk,

3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
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email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by (he federal awarding
agency.

29. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients

("subgrantecs") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to

establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to

decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

30. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -
for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements ~ OJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore docs not consider a procurement "contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web
site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition; All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incor^ratcd by
reference here.

31. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement
contract that would exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,
$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements - OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not
consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award arc posted on the OJP web site at
https://oip.eov/fundinp/Explorc/NoncompetitivcProcuremcnt.htm (Award condition; Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $250,000)), and arc incorporated by reference here.
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32. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards

("subgrants") of $30,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total
compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier
subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient obligations,

which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006
(FFATA), arc posted on the OJP web site at httpsi//ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm

(Award condition: Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation), and are incorporated
by reference here.

33. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives

any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient
promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are

being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost items for

which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ
awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if

so requested by the DOJ awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-
projeci-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of

funding.

34. Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the
DOJ Office of the Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee,

agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds

under this award- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a

criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or

similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award

should be reported to the OIG by-(l) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at
h^lps://oig.iuslice.^ov/l^otline/contact-gran^s.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail

directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations

Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530;
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and/or (3) by facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee

Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at

https://oig.iustice.gov/hotlinc.
j

35. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier

Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award

Management (SAM), currently accessible at hltps://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable

requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of

information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to

first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities

that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are

posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/SAM.htm (Award condition:

System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a
natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may

own or operate in his or her name).

36. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the

recipient, or any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee") at any tier, cither directly or indirectly, to support

or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at

any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable

federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)
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Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrccipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to
influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of
any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement,
subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,

extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law

apply, including an exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to
contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of
OJP.

37. Recipient integrity and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain
civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of
information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected
to the performance of) cither this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and
performance system (currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal designated
integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are posted on the OJP
web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition: Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and arc incorporated by
reference here.

38. Justice Information Sharing

Information sharing projects funded under this award must comply with DOJ's Global Justice

Information Sharing Initiative (Global) guidelines. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any

tier) must conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all constituent elements, where

applicable, as described at: https://it.ojp.gov/gsp_granicondition. The recipient (and any
subrecipient at any tier) must document planned approaches to information sharing and
describe compliance with the GSP and appropriate privacy policy that protects shared

information, or provide detailed justification for why an alternative approach is recommended.
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39. Avoidance of duplication of networks

To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for law
enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between

jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the

communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the recipient can
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost efYective or

would impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system.

40. Law enforcement task forces - required training

Within 120 days of award acceptance, each current member of a law enforcement task force

funded with award funds who is a task force commander, agency executive, task force officer,
or other task force member of equivalent rank, must complete required online (internet-based)

task force training. Additionally, all future task force members must complete this training
once during the period of performance for this award, or once every four years if multiple OJP

awards include this requirement.

The required training is available free of charge online through the BJA-funded Center for
Task Force Integrity and Leadership (www.ctfli.org). The training addresses task force
effectiveness, as well as other key issues including privacy and civil liberties/rights, task force
performance measurement, personnel selection, and task force oversight and accountability. If
award funds arc used to support a task force, the recipient must compile and maintain a task
force personnel roster, along with course completion certificates.

Additional information regarding the training is available through BJA's web site and the
Center for Task Force Integrity and Leadership (wwwxtflLorg).

41. Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable
statutes, regulations, award conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include
the applicable conditions of this award in any subaward. Among other things, the recipient is
responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of specific outcomes and
benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under
this award.
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42. Any written, visual, or audio publications funded in whole or in part under this award, with

the exception of press releases, shall contain the following statements: 'This project was
supported by Grant No. 15PBJA-23-GG-03005-J AGX awarded by the Bureau of Justice

Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a component of the Department of Justice's

Office of Justice Programs, which also includes the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the National

Institute of Justice, the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, the Office for
Victims of Crime, and the SMART Office. Points of view or opinions in this document are

those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." The current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides

guidance on allowable printing and publication activities.

43. Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following

statement on the home page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents)

whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to interior content), and on any pages from

which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages that provide

results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a

grant from the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of

Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are

responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including, without limitation, its

content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full

text of the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the

statement may be included through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal

Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

44. Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized

Representative contact information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail

address. If any information is incorrect or has changed, the award recipient's Entity
Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD. Instructions on

how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at
https://iusticegrants.usdoi.tiov/trainina/traininQ-entitv-manapemcnt.

45. Recipients utilizing award funds for forensic genealogy testing must adhere to the United

States Department of Justice Interim Policy Forensic Genealogical DNA Analysis and

Searching (https://www.justice.gov/olp/page/file/i204386/download), and must collect and
report the metrics identified in Section IX of that document to BJA.
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- SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

46. The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or
subaward, at any tier) may be used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes

unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any accompanying accessories to support UAS.

47. FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards
("subgrants") of $30,000 or more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total

compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of the recipient and first-tier

subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient obligations,
which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006

(FFATA), arc posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm

(Award condition: Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation), and are incorporated

by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to- (1) an award of less

than $30,000, or (2) an award made to an individual who received the award as a natural

person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

48. Applicants must ensure that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to
the services under this program(s). National origin discrimination includes discrimination on

the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI and the

Safe Streets Act, recipients are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons

have meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may entail providing language

assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S.
Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with Title VI

requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

49. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's

guidelines, protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager

for this award and the Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such

monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The recipient agrees

to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks,
including documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the

recipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may result in actions that
affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review;

designation of the recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

50. Use of program income

Program income (as defined in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements) must be used in

accordance with the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. Program income
earnings and expenditures both must be reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report, SF
425.

51. Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23

With respect to any information technology system funded or supported by funds under this

award, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with 28 C.F.R. Part 23,

Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be

applicable. Should OJP determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its
discretion, perform audits of the system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28

C.F.R. Part 23 occur, the recipient may be fined as per 34 U.S.C. I023l(c)-(d). The recipient
may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds.

\

52. Protection of human research subjects

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28

C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research

subjects, including obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and

subject informed consent.

53. Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality

requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231 and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use,

and revelation of data or information. The recipient further agrees, as a condition of award

approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part

22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.
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-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

54. The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or

information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project.

55. The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative
declares and certifies, among other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority

to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all
material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of performance under this

award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role

of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first

ensuring that the individual has the requisite legal authority.

56. In accepting this award, the recipient agrees that grant funds cannot be used for Facial

Recognition Technology (FRT) unless the recipient has policies and procedures in place to

ensure that the FRT will be utilized in an appropriate and responsible manner that promotes

public sajety, and protects privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties and complies with ail
applicable provisions of the U.S. Constitution, including the Fourth Amendment's protection

against unreasonable searches and seizures and the First Amendment's freedom of association

and speech, as well as other laws and regulations. Recipients utilizing funds for FRT must

make such policies and procedures available to DOJ upon request.

57. "Methods of Administration" - monitoring compliance with civil rights laws and

nondiscrimination provisions

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with

applicable federal civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions. Within 90 days of the
date of award acceptance, the recipient must submit to OJP's Office for Civil Rights (at
CivilRightsMOA@usdoJ.gov) written Methods of Administration ("MOA") for subrecipient

monitoring with respect to civil rights requirements. In addition, upon request by OJP (or by

another authorized federal agency), the recipient must make associated documentation

available for review.

58. Submission of eligible records relevant to the National Instant Background Check System

Consonant with federal statutes that pertain to firearms and background checks - including 18

U.S.C. 922 and 34 U.S.C. ch. 409 -- if the recipient (or any subrecipient at any tier) uses this

award to fund (in whole or in part) a specific project or program (such as a law enforcement,

prosecution, or court program) that results in any court dispositions, information, or other
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records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the National Instant

Background Check System (NICS), or that has as one of its purposes the establishment or

improvement of records systems that contain any court dispositions, information, or other

records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS, the
recipient (or subrecipient, if applicable) must ensure that all such court dispositions,

information, or other records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to

the NICS arc promptly made available to the NICS or to the "State" repository/database that is

electronically available to (and accessed by) the NICS, and - when appropriate - promptly

must update, correct, modify, or remove such NICS-rclcvant "eligible records".

In the event of minor and transitory non-compliance, the recipient may submit evidence to

demonstrate diligent monitoring of compliance with this condition (including subrecipient

compliance). DOJ will give great weight to any such evidence in any express written

determination regarding this condition.

59. Compliance with National Environmental Policy Act and related statutes

Upon request, the recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must assist BJA in complying

with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the National Historic Preservation Act,

and other related federal environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of these

award funds, cither directly by the recipient or by a subrecipient. Accordingly, the recipient

agrees to first determine if any of the following activities will be funded by the grant, prior to

obligating funds for any of these purposes. If it is determined that any of the following

activities will be funded by the award, the recipient agrees to contact BJA.

The recipient understands that this condition applies to new activities as set out below,

whether or not they are being specifically funded with these award funds. That is, as long as

the activity is being conducted by the recipient, a subrecipient, or any third party, and the

activity needs to be undertaken in order to use these award funds, this condition must first be

met. The activities covered by this condition are:

A. New construction;

B. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or
historically sensitive area, including properties located within a 100-year flood plain,

a wetland, or habitat for endangered species, or a property listed on or eligible for

listing on the National Register of Historic Places;
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C. A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a)
result in a change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size;

D. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than

chemicals that are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and
(b) traditionally used, for example, in office, household, recreational, or education

environments; and

E. Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory
operations, including the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine

methamphetamine laboratories.

The recipient understands and agrees that complying with NEPA may require the preparation

of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as directed by
BJA. The recipient further understands and agrees to the requirements for implementation of a
Mitigation Plan, as detailed at https://bja.gov/Funding/nepa.html, for programs relating to

methamphetamine laboratory operations.

Application of This Condition to Recipient's Existing Programs or Activities: For any of the

recipient's or its subrecipients' existing programs or activities that will be funded by these

award funds, the recipient, upon specific request from BJA, agrees to cooperate with BJA in

any preparation by BJA of a national or program environmental assessment of that funded

program or activity.

60. Establishment of trust fund

If award funds are being drawn down in advance, the recipient (or a subrecipient, with respect

to a subaward) is required to establish a trust fund account. Recipients (and subrecipients)

must maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest-bearing accounts, unless
regulatory exclusions apply (2 C.F.R. 200.305(b)(8)). The trust fund, including any interest,

may not be used to pay debts or expenses incurred by other activities beyond the scope of the

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG). The recipient also agrees

to obligate the award funds in the trust fund (including any interest earned) during the period

of performance for the award and expend within 90 days thereafter. Any unobligated or

unexpended funds, including interest earned, must be returned to OJP at the time of closeout.
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61. Certification of body armor "mandatory wear" policies, and compliance with NIJ standards

If recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body armor, the recipient must submit a
signed certification that each law enforcement agency receiving body armor purchased with
funds from this award has a written "mandatory wear" policy in effect. The recipient must

keep signed certifications on file for any subrecipients planning to utilize funds from this

award for ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchases. This policy must be in
place for at least all uniformed ofTicers before any funds from this award may be used by an

agency for body armor. There are no requirements regarding the nature of the policy other

than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be

purchased at any threat level, make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as

the body armor has been tested and found to comply with applicable National Institute of

Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor Model List.

In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the

United Slates and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest

NIJ standard information and the NIJ Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following

the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: httDs://nii.oiD.uov/topics/^uipment-and-
tcchnologv/bodv-armor

62. Prohibition on use of award funds for match under BVP program

JAG funds may not be used as the 50% match for purposes of the DOJ Bulletproof Vest
Partnership (BVP) program.

63. If award funds arc used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA

profiles must be uploaded to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database

operated by the FBI) by a government DNA laboratory with access to CODIS. With the

exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this award may be

entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written

approval from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and

supplies unless the resulting DNA profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking

agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure all requirements are met for

participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

64. Extreme risk protection programs funded by JAG must include, at a minimum: pre-

deprivation and post-deprivation due process rights that prevent any violation or infringement
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of the Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of Rights, and the
substantive or procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and Fourteenth

Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and as

interpreted by State courts and United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the

United States). Such programs must include, at the appropriate phase to prevent any violation

of constitutional rights, at minimum, notice, the right to an in-person hearing, an unbiased

adjudicator, the right to know opposing evidence, the right to present evidence, and the right
to confront adverse witnesses; the right to be represented by counsel at no expense to the

government; pre-dcprivation and post-deprivation heightened evidentiary standards and proof

which mean not less than the protections afforded to a similarly situated litigant in Federal

court or promulgated by the State's evidentiary body, and sufficient to ensure the full

protections of the Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of

Rights, and the substantive and procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and

Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and

as interpreted by State courts and United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the

United States). The heightened evidentiary standards and proof under such programs must, at

all appropriate phases to prevent any violation of any constitutional right, at minimum,

prevent reliance upon evidence that is unsworn or unaffirmed, irrelevant, based on

inadmissible hearsay, unreliable, vague, speculative, and lacking a foundation; and penalties

for abuse of the program.

65. Exceptions regarding Prohibited and Controlled Equipment under OJP awards

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the other terms and conditions of this award,

including in the condition regarding "Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds-

-prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards," the requirements for the
"Transfer/Sale of Award-Funded Controlled Equipment to Other LEAs" and the requirements

for the "Transfer/Sale of Award-Funded Controlled Equipment to NON-LEAs" do not apply

to this award.

66. Expenditures prohibited without waiver

No funds under this award may be expended on the purchase of items prohibited by the JAG

program statute, unless, as set forth at 34 U.S.C. 10152, the BJA Director certifies that

extraordinary and exigent circumstances exist, making such expenditures essential to the

maintenance of public safety and good order.
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67. Authorization to obligate (federal) award funds to reimburse certain project costs incurred on
or after October 1, 2022

The recipient may obligate (federal) award funds only after the recipient makes a valid

acceptance of the award. As of the first day of the period of performance for the award

(October 1,2022), however, the recipient may choose to incur project costs using non-federal

funds, but any such project costs are incurred at the recipient's risk until, at a minimum- (1)

the recipient makes a valid acceptance of the award, and (2) all applicable withholding

conditions are removed by OJP (via an Award Condition Modification (ACM)). (A

withholding condition is a condition in the award document that precludes the recipient from

obligating, expending, or drawing down all or a portion of the award funds until the condition
is removed.)

Except to the extent (if any) that an award condition expressly precludes reimbursement of

project costs incurred "atrrisk," if and when the recipient makes a valid acceptance of this

award and OJP removes each applicable withholding condition through an Award Condition

Modification (ACM), the recipient is authorized to obligate (federal) award funds to

reimburse itself for project costs incurred "at-risk" earlier during the period of performance

(such as project costs incurred prior to award acceptance or prior to removal of an applicable
withholding condition), provided that those project costs otherwise are allowable costs under

the award.

68. Required data on law enforcement agency training

Any law enforcement agency receiving direct or sub-awarded funding from this JAG award

must submit quarterly accountability metrics data related to training that officers have

received on the use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive

engagement with the public.

69. All State and Local JAG recipients must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425).

Additionally, State JAG and Local JAG Category Two ($25K or more) must submit semi

annual performance reports through JustGrants and Local JAG Category One (Less than

$25K) must submit annual performance reports through JustGrants. Consistent with the

Department's responsibilities under the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)

and the GPRA Modemization Act of 2010, the recipient must provide data that measure the

results of its work. The recipient must submit quarterly performance metrics reports through

BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website: https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/. For more

detailed information on reporting and other JAG requirements, refer to the JAG reporting

requirements webpage (http$://bjapmt.ojp.gov/help/jagdocs.html). Failure to submit required

Page 30 of 45
Subrccipleni Initials

Date _5//i



EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

JAG reports by established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and future
High-Risk designation.

70. BJA- JAG - SORNA Appeal Limits

The recipient acknowledges the final agency decision made by DOJ that recipient's

Jurisdiction did not substantially implement the Sex Offender Registration and Notification
Act (Public Law 109-248, "SORNA") before the deadline, and understands that, as a result of

that final agency decision, the amount of this JAG award was reduced, pursuant to 34 U.S.C.

20927. By accepting this specific award, the recipient voluntarily agrees that if it elects to file

a judicial appeal of that final agency decision, which was integral in determining this

particular funding amount, no such appeal may commence more than 6 months after the date

of acceptance of this award.

71. Confidential Funds ^

Prior to the expenditure of confidential funds, the recipient and any subrecipients agree to sign

a certification that the recipient (or the subrecipient, as applicable) has read, understands, and

agrees to abide by all of the conditions pertaining to confidential fund expenditures set forth in

the DOJ Grants Financial Guide.

72. Withholding of funds for Budget narrative or information

The recipient may not expend or draw down any award funds until the recipient submits, and

OJP reviews and accepts, the required budget information or narrative for the award, and an

Award Condition Modification has been issued to remove this condition.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
as the Slate Agency (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for activities
surrounding the purpose of hiring a Social Worker Advocate to assist public defender
clients in obtaining inpatient or intensive outpatient treatment for substance use disorder.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January J, thefirst quarterly
report is due on April IS''' or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the

Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

Kathryn Fisher

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

1 Granite Place South

Concord, NH 03301

(603) 271-1261

Kathrvn.E.Ftsher'^doi.nh.;20v
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EXHIBIT C

-PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT B,

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrccipient*s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to comp>ensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-l section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $50,000 of the

total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Executive Council approval from

07/01/2025 to 06/30/2026, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be
contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may

apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal grant

end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing. No

extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.
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EXHIBIT P

- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

I, ^ UzLlok-^ [responsible ojjficial], certify that
New Hampshire Public Defender [Subrecipient] has completed the EEC reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: httDs://oin,gov/about/ocr/faa ccon.htm on

y^\\l\ 2n2^ [date]
C^er/vpT)

it is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than SO employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

P'V [ojfficial that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at hrtps://oip.gov/about/ocr/ocr«training-videos/vidco-ocr-traiiiing.htm on:

)t'\[date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of Justice

SubreciPient Discriminatioh Complaint Process

I further certify that: New Hampshire Public Defender [SubrecipienI] will comply with
applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery
of services and has a policy or written procedure in place for accepting discrimination based
complaints from employees and program beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made
publicly available to program beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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- EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES -

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following arc true and correct:

(1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(I3) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
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I2291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the OfTlce on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966(54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969(42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, alt paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § I0251(a)(l7)), I assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and
b. subject to par. a. each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award .
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.
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(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipienl is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—

a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS OfTice), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l I),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(Il).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, 1 assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Mafii .fe ^ CiietAf SefJ\Ce<.
^ame of Authorized Signor I Title of Authorized Signor

^ I
Sie/fatdre
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EXHIBIT E

- NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not

replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If

there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subrecipient or grantee will be required to supply

documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal

funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3)

http://www.oip.iisdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/part2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention

A recipient or subrecipient may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the

federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it

must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be,

but is not limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a

county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced

when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the

terminated positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or

local funds.

The New Hampshire Public Defender (Subrecipient) certifies that any funds awarded through

grant number 15PBJA-23-GG-03005-JAGX shall be used to supplement existing funds for

program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated

for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The New Hampshire Public Defender (Subrecipient) understands that supplanting violations may

result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this

program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under

this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name an^itle of Authorized Signor:,

Signature:
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EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipients should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which
they are required to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice ("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following;
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subrecipient's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) arc made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

/
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EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipicnt certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or t>een convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals*) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (for OJP Subrccipients, to OJP at
Ojpcomplianccrcporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrccipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrccipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov),
unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either that (I) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has t^n assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the lax liability, or
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EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (forOJP

Subrecipients, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW
at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days afier such conviction;
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EXHIBIT F
/

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification numbers) of each affected award;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug^free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (0-

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Mo/ni ^ CI'ipA Spnlf^S.
Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signer

New Hampshire Public Defender, 10 Ferry Street, Suite 434, Concord, NH 03301
Name and Address of Agency
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EXHIBIT G

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING
ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires Subreclpienls of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1,
2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of
$30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result
in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting
requirements, as of the date of the award.

I n accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipienis must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient's
representative(s), as identified in Sections l.I I of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT G

-CERTIFICATION-

^\rechi <;
Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor

/^/
Signature Date

As the Subrccipicnt identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is: FEJ6V7S9FUH2

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooper^ive agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to U1 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your business or organization are as follows:
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EXHIBIT G

- CERTIFICATION-

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount;

Name: Amount:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan. Secretary ofStatcofthc State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC

DEFENDER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 06. 1985.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of States office have been received and is in good siarrdingas

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 83694

Ccnincaie Number: 0007154425

%

%

£

O

%it

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixcd

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of April A.D. 2025.

—

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Certificate of Authority

I. Christine List hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of New Hampshire Public Defender.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken by the Board of Directors/shareholders,

on May 7.2025. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders participated in the vote.

VOTED: That Mary Hawkes is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Public Defender

to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its

agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,

agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications

thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of

this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full

force and effect as of the date of this contract/contract amendment to which this

certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this

Certificate of Authority. 1 further certify that it Is understood that the State of New

Hampshire will rely on this Certificateasevidence that the person(s) listed above currently

occupy the positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To

the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the

corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are

expressly stated herein.

Date: 5/7/2Q25 Signature.

Printed Name: Christine List

Title: Vice President
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04/1(V2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT^ If the certWcste holder Is an AOOUIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(tts) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
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CGI Insurance. Inc.
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Auburn NH 03032
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(SM) 574-24.3
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COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 Mssim REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTV^THSTANDINGANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OP ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VSTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATe MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LiMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
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07/01/2024
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MEOEXPIAnyCWPNWl

PERSONAL SAOV INJURY

OCNERALAGGREGATE
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Emptoye« Benefits
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le^pcddrw

1.000,000

50.000

10,000

1.000,000
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S2.000.000
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

\

NH Dtparimsnt of Jusbca

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTKE WILL BE DELIVER EO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

1 Granite Place
Aunropseo REncseNTATn«

Concord

.4 1
NH 03301

ACORD 28 (2016/03)
C 10BB*2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Internal Revenue Service Department of the treasury

oittnct

Olractor

^New Hatnpshire Public Defender
117 North State Street"

Concord, NH 03301

P.O. Boi ISBO, GPO Ml)m, N.Y. U2D2

MAR 0 9 1987
DM:

Employer Identification Nunber;
02-0388924

Accounting Period Ending:
June 30th
Form 990 Required: X Yes No
Person to Contact: '

C.A. Berardi-Barletta
Contact Telephone Number:
(315) 423-5002

Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplied, and assuming your" operations vdll he
as stated in your application for recognition of 'exemption, we have
determined you are exempt from Federal income tax under section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code.

Vfe have further deterrained that you are not a private foundation
within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code, because you are an
organization described in section(s) 509(a)(1) § 170Cb)(I)(A)(vi).

If your sources of support, or your purposes, character, or method of
operation change, please let us know so Me can consider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundatiori status. Also, you should inform
us of all changes in your name or address.

Beginning January 1, 1984, unless specifically excepted, you must pay
taxes under the Federal insurance-Contributions Act (social security taxes)
for each employee who is paid $100 or mo're in a-calendar year. You are not
liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FITTA).

Since you are not a private foundation, you are not subject to the
excise taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you are not
automatically exempt from other Federal excise taxes. If you have any
questions about excise, employment, or other Federal taxes, please let us
know.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or for
your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes if they
meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code'.

Letter 947(D0)(5-77)



The line checked in the heading of this letter shows Aether you nust
file Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from' income Tax. If Yes is
checked, you are required to file.Form 990 only if your gross receipts each
year are normally more than $10,000*,, or $25,000 -for years ended on or
after December 31, 1982. If a return is required, it must be filed by the
ISth day of the fifth month after the end of your annual accounting period.
The law imposes a penalty of $10 a day, up to a maximum of $5,000, when a
return is filed late, unless there is reasonable cause for the delay.

You are not required to file Federal income tax returns unless you
are subject to the tax on unrelated business income under section 511 of
the Code. If you are subject to thiS' tax, you nust file an income tax
return oh Form 990-T. In this letter, we are not determining whether any of
your present or proposed activities are unrelated trade or business as
defined in section 513 of the Code.

You need an employer identification number even if you have no
employees.

If an employer identification r^ber was not entered on your
application, a number will be assigned' to you and you will be advised of
it. Please use that number, on all returns you file and in all
correspondence with the Internal Revenue Service.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your
exempt status and foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent
records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely yours,

District Director

cc:

*  For tax years ending on and after December 31, 1982, organizations
whose gross receipts are not normally more than $25,000, are excused from
filing Form 990. For guidance in determining if your Egress receipts are
"normally" not more than the $25,000 limit, see the instructions for the
Form 990.

Letter 947(no)C5-77)
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September 11,2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors,
New Hampshire Public Defenden

Qualined Opinion

We have audited the fmancial statements of New Hampshire Public Defend (a non-profit organization) which
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and ihe related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, except for the effects of'ndt capitalizing certain lease ̂ ligetions as described in the Basis for Quaiifted
Opinion section of our report, the fihwcial s'utcments referred to above present fairly, in alt material respects, the
rmancial posltion of New Hampshire Public Defender as of June 30.2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accountitig principles generally accepted in the United
Stales of America.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Organization has excluded from property and debt in the financial statements, certain lease obligations that, in
our opinion, should be capitalized in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and did not include the related lea^ disclosures in the accompanying flnencia) statements. The effects
of this departure from accounting pnnclptes generally accepted in the United States of America on financial position,
changes in net assets, and cash flows have hot been determined.

Wc conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards^generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described'in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report Wc arc r^uired to be Independent of New Hampshire Public Defender
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accoi^ance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we.have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Manegement for the Fioancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are fm
from material misstatemeni, whether due to Iraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements,, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt atout New Hampshire Public Defender's ability to continue
as going concern within one year after the dale that the fmancial statemehts are available to be issued.

Auditor's Respoasibliities for the Audit of the Finohclal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatemeni, whether due to ^aud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is hot a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with' generally accepted auditing 'standards will always detect a material

137 Middle Street - Mancheitcr. NH • 03101-1905
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misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a msteria) misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is substantial likelihood that, individually

or in the aggregate, they would Influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we;

•  Exercise profiessional judgn>ent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regardir^ the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Defender's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used arxl the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Public Defender's ability to continue as going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate whh those charged whh governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related matters that we Identified
during the audit.



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBUC DgPENDER

STATEMENTS OF RNANQAL POSITION

JUNE 30.2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

2024

Cash and Certificates of Deposit

Government Contnct Receivable

Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation

LawUbraiy

TOTAL ASSETS

6,632,107

27,794,554

33391

242,608

384,075

34,523

35tl4ia58

2023

S  4,969,131

52,409

221,461

533,467

34,523
S  5310.991

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

UabMitlcs

Accounts Payable - State ofNew Hampshire $ - S 183,056

Accounts Payable 45359 40,830

Salaries Payable 680,900 642,800

Payroll Taxes Payable 50,930 48,130

Other Accrued Expenses 70,976 154.794

Accrued Annual Leave 830,843 684,141

Deferred Revenue 28,933,715 -

Total LiabUltics S 30,612,623 S 1,753,751

Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions s 5349,198 s 3,672.306

With Donor Restrictions (720,563) 384,934

Total Net Assets 5 4,528,635 s 4,057340

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 35,141358 s 5,810,991

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBUC DEFENDER

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVmES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WrTHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Revenues and gains

State Contract

Grant and Other Income

Interest Income

Total Revenues and Gains Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets Released from restrictions

Expiration of prc^ram restricitons

Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support

Without Donor Restrictions

Expenses

Program services
Administrative

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTIUCTIONS

Return to State of New Hampshire - Unused Grant

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

NET ASSETS AT THE END OP THE YEAR

S  26,655,393 S  25,899,032

1,037,290 708,296

471,395 183,976

28,164,078 26,79 U04

-

28,164,078 26,79 U04

25,755,878 24,652.996

1,936,805 1.963,970

27,692,683 26,616,966

47U9S 174,333

(183,056)

(183.056)

471,395 (8,718)

4^057^40 4,065,958

S  4,528,635 S  4.057^40

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBUC DCFEWDER

STATEMENTS OF FUWCTIONAi EXPENSES

rok trs YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 AND 2023

Profram 2024 Program 2025

Scrvlecs Admlnfitratlve Total Services Admlnlstnrtlve Total

gipemca

Personal Servkca $  16,702,303 S 1,494,074 $ 18,196.377 5 15,632,256 5  1,434,753 5 17,067,009

Payroll Taxes 1,261,3U 112,556 1,373,874 1,189,786 105,795 1,295,581

Fringe Beneflts 4,521.936 91,457 4,613,395 4.084,097 178,849 4,262,946

Insurance -Workcn Compensation 24,523 2,193 - 26.716 54,885 S/>33 59,918

Rent and Storage 1.479.970 53,678 1,533,648 1.432,749 51,965 1,484,714

Tdepbone 182.862 6,632 189,494 260,240 9,438 269,678

Travel 300,100 18,102 318.202 242,612 22,490 265,102

Repairs A Maintenance 274,860 19,829 294,689 468.465 37,876 506,341

Insurance -Malpractice/General 46,993 4,203 S1.I96 43,145 3,957 47,102

Training 75.548 6,757 82.305 158,560 14,540 173.100

Office Supplies 43,828 3,335 47.163 132,660 2,788 135,448

Other office Expense 264,115 14,011 278.126 295,296 18,662 313,958

Library 33,684 3,013 36.697 54,061 4,958 59,019

UUIitia 165,444 6,001 171.445 161,463 5AS6 167,319

Dues and Licenses 100,383 5.056 105.439 85,451 6,106 91,559

Contract Services 4931S • 49.315 28,093 - 28,093

Professional Services 34,676 95.908 130,584 98,835 60,902 159,737

Depreciation 194.0U ■ 194.018 230,342 • 230,342

Total Eipenses $  25,755,878 $ 1,936,80$ 5 27,692.683 $ 24,652.996 $  1,963,970 $ 26.616,986

SCE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBUC DEPENDER

STATEMENTS OF CASH ROWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Cash Flowf from Ooerathif Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $  471,395 S  18,718)

Adjnstments to Reeonelle Increase (Decrease) is Net Assets to Net

Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Operatins Activities

Non-cash items: 194,018 230,342

Changes In Assets and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in: State Contract Receivable (27,794.554) 25,593,545

Deposits and Other Receivables (982) (9,529)

Prepaid Expenses (21,147) 28,855

Increase (Decrease) in; Accounts Payable (178,627) 171,474

Accrued Expenses 103,784 164,698

Deferred revenue 28,933,715 (25,899,032)

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating ActWHtes 1,707,602 271,635

Cash Flows from InvcitlnB Activities

Cash (Used) to Purchase Equipment artd Leasehold Improvements (44,626) (242,675)

Cash Flows Itom Flnancini ActMlies

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing ActlvHIes - -

Increase (Decrease) in Cash 1,662.976 2B,960

Cash at Beginning of Year 4,969,131 4,940,171

Cash at End of Year S  6,632,107 $  4,969,131

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 and 2023

1. Nature ofOperattont

New Hampshire Public Defender (NHPD) is a private, non-profit corporation created in 1972 to give New
Hampshire a cost*efTecUve means of providing high*quality, reliable representation to indigent defendants. The
Prog^'s attorneys serve clients facing criminal and delinquency prosecution who cannot afford to retain private
counsel. NHPD receives its fUnding from a two-year contract from the New Hampshire Judicial Council which
is an executive branch agency of the State of New Hampshire.

2. Somniarv of Significant Accounting Pondes

Cenerat

Thb summary of significant accounting policies of NHPD is presented to assist in understanding the financial
statemenb. The financial statements and notes are representations of the organization's management, who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting poikies conform to generally accepted
accounting principles and have beeri consistently applied in the presentation of the financial statements.

Bash ofPrwentatton

The financial statements of the NHPD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unit^ Stales of America.

NHPD reports information regarding its fmancial pMition and activities according K> two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. Accordii^ly, the net assets of NHPD
and dianges therein are dassified and reported as follows:

a) Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-bnposed stipulations.
b) Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets whose use b limited by donor-imposed time and/or

purpose restrictions.

Governmental and private grant arrangements are evaluated and determined if they are nonreciprocal, meaning
the gmting entity has not received a direct benefit of commensurate value in exchange for the resources provided.
Instead, revenue b recognized as a conditional contribution, when the barrier to entitlement b overcome. The
barrier to entitlement b considered overcome when expenditures associated with each grant are determined to be
allowable and all other s^ificant conditions of the grant are met.

NHPD's State contract covers a two-year period.

Interest, investment gains (lossesX and other assets end liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without restrictions unless ilWir use b restricted.

Other revenues are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without restrictions unless their use b restricted.

Exoenses . . . ..
Expenses are reported as a decrease in net assets without donor restrictions. Gams and losses are reported as
increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipubtion or by taw. Expiration of net assets with donor restrictions (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been
fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as net asseb released fhrni restrictions.

Use of Estimates ..... ..
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted m the United
States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates.



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC PEPENDER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fCONTlNUEm

FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 and 2023

2. Summary of Stenlficanl Acconntine PoUclei fContlnucd^

Fair Valw of Financial InitnimeBts

The fair value measurements and disclosures topic of the FASB ASC defines fair value, establishes a framework
of measuring fiiir value and exp^s disclosures about fair value measurements. The Organization's financial
instnunents are cash, cenificate of deposit and its contract receivable. The recorded amounts of cash, certificate
of deposit and contract receivable approxitnates its fair value.

Allocation of Functional Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized in the Statement of
Activities. Certain costs, mcluding salaries and benefits, rent and utilities, have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited based on management's estimates.

Stalcmcflljrf Cashflows ^
Statement of Cash Flows shows cash and cash equivalents provided for end used by opei^ing, investing, and
financing activities. The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instniments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

EoplptBcnt and Uasthold Improvements

Equipment and leasdiold improvements are recorded at cost Assets acquired through capital lease agreements
are recorded in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require capitalization at their fair market value as of the date of the lease inception.

Property acquired in excess of $1000 is capit^ized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets
estimated useful life as follows: ^

Computer and Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Prop^ Held Under Capital Leases 5 Years
Leasehold Improvements 5-10 Yean

AH property has been acquired with funds from the State of New Hampshire which holds a reversionary interest
in these assess.

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are
removed ftom the accounts, along with the related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss Is recognized.

A summary of equipment and leasehold improvements is as follows:

Eotripnwnl and Lga—hold Improwmgim

Computer ntd Office Eqidpcncm

Leasehold bnpro^ments

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Equipment and Leasehold Impro>cmenii

>014

771.627

1,229.703

(1.617^53)

2013

1,072.422

1,204.248

(1.743.203)

S  384.073 S 333.467

Depreciation expense includes die depreciation of assets held under capital leases. Depreciation expense was
$194,018 and $230,342 for its years ended June 30,2024 end 2023.



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

NOTES TO FINANOAL STATEMENTS (CQNTINUEDI

FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. lOU and 2023

2. Summiirv of Stoiiflcant Accotmting Poltete fContlnncm

Mw M*>rflrT
NHPD cspitalizes the cost of books and muUipie vohnne sets of law books and estimates the salvage value to be
approximaiely the same as the original cost, therefore, depreciaticm expense is not recorded. Supplemental costs
to update looU leaf and other continuously updated volumes are expert.

The law library has been acquired with funds from the State ofNew Hampshire which holds a reversionary interest
in these assets.

3. HouMttv And Avallabilitv of Flnnnctel Assets

The following reflects the NHPD*s fbtancial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts not avail^e
for general use because of contractual restrictions within one year of the balance sheet date.

lOU 2023

Financial assets at vear-end:

Cash and Certificates of Deposit S 6,632,107 S 4,969,131
State Contract Receivable 27,794,354

Other Receivable 8,563 7,383

rinancial Assets at End of Year

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Surplus for unexpended State Contract

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one year

34.435,226 4,976,714

183.056

S 34.433,226 S  4,793,658

NHPD is substantially supported by a restricted contract. Because the restriction requires resources to be used in
a particular manner or in a future period, NHPD must maintain sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities
pursuant to the contract. Thus, financial assets may not be available for general expenditures within one year.
As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial as^ to be available
as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations become due. NHPD invests its cash in excess of daily
requirements in certificate ofdeposits with maturities of 90 dtcys or less.

4.

Effective for years beginning after December 13,2021, accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica require companies to adopt a new lease standard promulgated by Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2016-002, Leases (ASC Topic 842), and subsequent amendmcnU.

In accordance with ASU 2016-02, an entity is required to capitalize lease assets and lease obligations on its
statement of fbanctal position for all equipment and real estate leases with a remaining lease term that exceeds
12 months, and to provide certain disclosum related to those leases.

The organization did not capitalize lease assets and t^ligations related to its equipment and real estate leases, and
has not included most of the required lease disclosures. Instead, the Organizmion's policy is to record lease
payments as rent expense as incuired.

The effects of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America on
the Organization's fbancial position, changes in net assets, and flows have not been determined.



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /CONTINUED^

POR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 and 2023

4. Lexea fconttencd^

PadHtto • All lease commitmena for office and storage space, except the Laconia location, arc subject to
termination by NHPD if funding contingencies set forth in (he leases are not met The estimated fUture minimum
lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending Jene 30.2024 Total Estimated Annual Lease Commitments

2025 S U17327

2026 S 1,131.908

2027 S 1.075.095

2028 S 698-377

2029 S 531.272

Rent expense, excluding storage, was SI .533,648 and SI,482,733 for its years ended 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Eoninment Leases - The Organiation has several equipment lease agreements for Its office equipment.

Equipment lease expense was S53.S93 and S45.755 for its year ended 2024 and 2023, respectively.

5. Annoal Leave

All unused vacation time, m accwdance with a formula, will be paid upon the termination of an emplco^ee. NHPD
estimates this unused and accrued vacation pay to be $830,843 and $684,141 for its years ended June 30,2024
and 2023, respectively.

6- Income Taxes
NHPD is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501 (cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code. NHPD is also
exempt from New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for Federal or State income
taxes.

NHPD evaluates all significant tax positions. As of June 30,2024, NHPD does not believe that it has taken any
positions that would require the recording of any additional tax liability nor does it believe that there are any
unrealized tax benefits that would either increase or decrease within the next year.

Penalties and interest by income taxing authorities would be included in operating expenses.

Federal and State tax returns are generally available for examination by the taxing authorities for three years from
the date of filing. As of June 30,2024, those years are 2021 through 2024.

7. Retirement Phn ^ r ii
NHPD sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) for all
qualifying employees.

The Plan requires NHPD to match 50% of each participating employee's contribution, not to exceed 5% of their
wages. NHPD contributed S311,487 and $291,661 for its years ended June 30,2024 and 2023, respectively.



NBW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC DEFENDER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED^

FOR ITS YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2024 atwl 1023

8. ConceotnUlona

EcoBomk Dtpcndencv • NHPD receives all its funding under a two-year contract wltti the State of New
Hampshire which expires on June 30,2025. The future existence of NHPD is solely dependent upon the State
renewing the contract. The contract has not been renewed. Management believes the contract will be renewed
for an additional two years.

Cash • NHPD maintains its bank accounts and certificates of deposit at one financial institution. The accounts
regularly exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insu^ amount of $250,000. The excess f\uds are
secured by L^ers of Credit

Grant Recetvable • Represents the second year of a two-year state contract As of June 30,2024 and 2023, the
receivable Is $27,794,554 and SO respectively.

9. Other RevcPBC
2024 2023

Grants receive durina the year

U.S. Dq>aftmeht of Treasury Covid !9-Corontvirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds awarded a $1,800,000 two-year grant, expiring
June 30,2023 to hire attorneys who are currently in private practice. The
grant was extended through June 30,2024. $ 982,028 $ 642,311

U.S. Department of Justice - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistant
Grant awarded $75,000, expiring June 30, 2023,' for the hiring social
workers. The grant has been renewed for $50,000, expiring on June 30, 50,000 65,985
2024.

U.S. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention awarded
$50,000 expiring June 3D, 2024 to provide legal services, representation
and consultation to youths. 5-JT5 :

Total »1-035-473 % 708^96

10. Aceonnts Pavnbic - State of New Hampshire OJnwed GranO
The State contract, provided by the Judicial Council, requires NHPD to return its unused grant ftmds which, as of
June 30,2024 and 2023, is SO and $183,056, respectively.

11. Union Contract -

On August 28,2023 NHPD's staff attorneys ratified its union contract The contract expires August 28,2025.

12. Sgbseaueht Eventt . ̂ ,
Management has evaluated subsequent events through September II, 2024, the date on which the flnai>cial
statements were available to be isnied. There were no subsequent events that require recognition or additional
disclosure in these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors, September 11,2024

New Hampshire Public Defender;

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing-standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General'of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Public
' Defender (NHPD) (a nonprofit OfHanizatlon), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2024, and the related statements of activlties, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then

ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 11,2024. : ' .

Our report has been modified to reflect that the Organization has excluded from property and debt In the

2024 statement of financial position, certain lease obligations that, In our opinion, should be capitalized

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and did
not include the related lease disclosures in the accompanying financial statements. The effects of this

departure from accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America on financial
position, changes in net assets, and cash flows have not been determined.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NHPO's internal control
over financial reporting (Internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statemertts, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NHPD's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of NHPD's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of perfohning their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness\s a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement

of the entity's financial statements will not be.prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or. a'comblnation of deficiencies. In Internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet Important enough'to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed lo identify all deficiencies in Internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiehcies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

,137 Middle Street • Manchester. NH • 0310M905
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Report on Compliance end Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NHP[y$ flnanclal statements are free from
nfuterial misstatentent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion,on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectivertess of the organization's
Intemai control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards In considering the organizations Intemai control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPIIANGE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE-UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors, September 11, 2024
New Hampshire Public Defender:

Report on Compliance for Each Major FederafProgram

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Public Defender's (NHPD) compiiance with the types of compiiance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OM^-Compliance Supplement \\)st could have a direct
and material effect on each of NHPD's major federal programs for the year ended June,30,2024. NHPD's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, NHPD complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and rriateHal effed oh each of its major federal programs for

the year ended June 30,2024.

Basis for Opinion on-Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Generaf of the United States;; and the.audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further dekribed in the Auditor's' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of NHPD and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, In accordance
with relent ethical requirements relating to the audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to proYide a basis for our opinion on compilance'for each major
federal program. Our aud'it does not provide a legal determination of NHPD's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibllitfes for Management Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the NHPD's
federal programs.
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Auditor's Responsibitltles for the Audit ̂ CompUatKe

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompllance with the

con^pliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on NHPD's compliance based on our audit Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with

generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing 5tofldord!s, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompllance when It exits. The risk of not detecting material noncompllance
resuittng from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentiondl omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered nuterial if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or In the aggregate. It would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user of the report

on compliance about NHPD's compliance with the requirements of each major program as a whole.

In performing an audit In accordance vdth generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional Judgfnent and ntaintaln professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on

a test basis, evidence regarding NHPD's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of NHPD's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit In order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances and to test and report on

Internal control over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NHPD's Internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, not such opinion Is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficierKies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compDance that we Identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency In Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In Internal control over compliance Is a deficiency,

or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable

possibility that material noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program win
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timety basis. A significant deficiency In Internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies; In Internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a material weakness In
Internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.



Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compllartce section above and was not designed to Identify all

deficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be nuterial weaknesses or significant

deficiencies in Internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not

Identify any deficiencies In Internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,

as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over

compliance may exist that were not Identified.

Our audit was not designed for the^purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of Intemal control over compllartce and the results of that testinig based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance for June 30,
2024

We have audited the financial statements of NHPO as of and for the year ended June 30,2024 and the

related notes to the financial statements, which collecdvety comprise the Organization's basic financial

statements. We issued our report thereon dated September 11,2024, which contain a qualified opinion
on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards Is
presented for purposes of addltlortal analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and Is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such
Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards Is folrly stated in all material respects In relation to the finandal statements
taken as a whole.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Organization has excluded from property and debt In the 2024 statement of financial position, certain
lease obligations that, in our opinion, should be capitalized In accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America, and did not include the related lease disclosures in the
accompanying financial statements. The effects of this departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America on financial position, changes in net assets, and cash flows have
not been determined.



New Hampshire Public Defender

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30* 2024
PaM-

Federal Grantor/Paae*

through Grantor/Program or
Cluster Title

U^. Department of Treasury

PasS'through State of New
Hampshire Judicial Cour^cil

Federal

Assistance

Listing
Number

Through
Entity
Identification

Number

Passed

Through to

Subreclplents

Total Federal

Expenditures

COVID'19 - Corona Virus State

and Local Fiscal Recovery

Funds

Support for Indigent Defense

21.027 15S941 982.098

Total U.S Department of
Treasury 982,098

U.S Department of Justice

Pass-through State of New

Hampshire Department of

Justice

Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 155941 50,000

Total U.S Department of

Justice 50,000

U.8 Office of Juvenile Justice

end Delinquency Prevention

Pass-through State of New

Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Legal Consultation for Juvenile
Justice Assessments 16.540 165941 3,375

Total U.S Office of Juvenile

Justice ar>d Delinquency
Prevention 3,375

Total Federal Financial

Assistance 1,035,473

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards



New Hampshire Public Defender

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30,2024

Note 1 • Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) Includes the

federal award activity of New Hampshire Public Defender under programs of the federal

government for the year ended June 30,2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federat Regulations Part 200, Uniform

AdmlnfstrativB Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
New Hampshire Public Defender, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of New Hampshire Public Defender.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal

financial assistance has been provided to a subrecipient.

Noted- Indirect Cost Rate

New Hampshire Public Defender has elected to not use the 10-percent de minlmls Indirect cost

rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards



New Hampshire Public Defender
For the Year Ended June 30» 2024

Section I - Summary el Autftot^t Results

FINANOAL STATEMENTS

Type of report the auditor issued on the audited finandal statements

Irrtemal control over finandal reporting:

Material weakness(es) Identified?
Significant defldency(les) Identified?

Noncompllance material to financial statements noted?

Qualified

No

No

No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major program

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant defldency(les) Identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Sectton 200.S16|a)?

Unmodified

No

No

No

IdentHieation of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Ouster

Covld 19-Coronavlrus - State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk audltee?

Federal Fitundal

Assistance Listing

21.027

$750,000

No

None Reported

Section II - Finandal Statement Flndlnttg

Section III - Federal Award Finding and Questioned Costs

None Reported
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New Hampshire Public Defender

Christopher Johnson. Executive Director / Annual salary $160,000

Mary Hawkes. Director of Client Services /Annualsalary $124,737

Amy Mailhot de Chacon, Director of Finance / Annual salary $119,322

Adrienne Bradshaw, Social Services Manager / Annual salary $72,436



Adrienne Bradshaw

Ohjccfhc: Near-graduating MSW student with strong communication skills, experience in research,
program evaluation, data analysb, case management, assessments, and interventions seeking to
obtain employment In the legal mental health environment.

fjlinuitiou:

Bachelor of the arts j 08/2009-12/20131 southeastern Louisiana university

Major: English Literature & Language

Master's Decree j 08/2020-12/20211 Tulane School of Social Work

Major: Social Work

• Certification Program: Mental Health, Addiction, and Family
• Phi Alpha Honor SociETV

- Extracurricular courses completed include Treatment of Depression and Anxiety, Clinical

Treatment WITH Children & adolescents, and Clinical Practice in Addiction.
- Completed Social Welfare & Poucy, Diversity & Social Justice, HBSE I & II, CoMMUNrrv Organizing
AND Policy /Uwocacy, Methods I & II, Advanced Methods I & II, Program Evaluation , Data Analysis 8r
Interpretation, and PsychopathoijOgy and the DSM- 5.

II,ird Skills

O MicrosoR Office

• Google Drive
O Zoom

O Writing
0 Presentations

O Assessments & Evaluations

O Creating Treatment Plans & Interventions
O Research. Program Evaluation, and Data Analysis
P Crisis Management
O Policy Adherence
O Mandated Reporter Training

Stjfl Skills

O Willingness to learn
O Collaboration

O  Integrity & Accountability
P Organization
9 Teamwork
6 Critical-thinking
O Problem-solving
O F.rrcctlve Communication

P Dependability



Professional Experience

SOCIAL WORK INTERN 1 ORLEANS PUBLIC DEFENDERS 101/21 TO PRESENT

• Case Management (including referrals to Inpatfent substance use treatment. lOP. sober living, FACT, etc.)
•  Intake evaluations and assessments

• Records requests
• SMART goals
% Psychoeducatlon
• Crisis Intervention

0 Legal Case Mitigation
0 Blopsychosoclal Assessments
• Program Evaluation Research

SECRETARY OF HEART HEALTH | NORTH OAKS MEDICAL CENTER | 11/2018TO 7(2020
• Check>ln patients for different cardiology procedures
O Complete chart audits
0 Assist in electrocardiogram orders, such as scanning final residts
O Track Cath Lab procedures via Excel spreadsheets
.0 Manage department phone calls
0 Email/phone correspondence
0 Assist patients & family members
. O Order department supplies & track department stock
0' Assist revenue Integrity in charging & financial matters of the cardiology department
0 General administrative duties

UNO SECRETARY I NORTH OAKS MEDICAL CENTER |06.'20) 5 TO 12/2016

Manage unit dt patieni phone calls
Email'phone correspondence
Audit

Daily unit checklist
Assist patients & family members
Schedule outpatient appointments 6 procedures

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE j THE COCOA BEAN BAKERY 106-7007 TO 05;20l4

•  Obtfitn A verI fy orders
•  Email/phone correspondence
•  Schedule appointments
•  Walk'in customer service

•  Putnil orders

•  Check Inventory of items in house

Volunteering

O CASA - Court Appointed special Advocate
O HOT Team • North Oaks Medical Center Volunteer

iv.u.



Job Description

Social Worker - Social Service Advocate (SSA)

Position Summary: The SSA is part of New Hampshire Public Defender's legal defense team
working to obtain the best legal outcome for assigned clients through social service intervention
at all stages of the court process. The SSA works under the direction of the assigned NHPD
attomey but may also provide additional insight into cases. All services provided by the SSA are
directly related to obtaining the best legal outcome for clients.

Duties and Responsibilities

Communication Skills:

Prepares written output for the court and/or NHPD attomey, including (but not limited
to), dispositional treatment plans and alternative treatment sentencing, aid in sentencing reports,
bio-psychosocial histories, court case updates, and medical record summaries

Documents and corroborates a client's personal history through collecting and analyzing
all relevant life history records and interviewing client's family members and other personal and
collateral contacts ,

Collaborates with defense team members to develop defense strategies and altemative
sentencing options

Utilizes social history investigations to examine the factors and forces that affect the
client's development and behavior

Testifies in court when necessary and beneficial

Case Management:

Identifies programs and services that may benefit clients, establishes connections, and/or
makes referrals (e.g., mental health counseling, financial assistance, substance use treatment,
education, job training etc.)

Coordinates with other state agencies (e.g., DCYF, DHHS, etc.) and other community-
based service organizations to advocate for clients' needs and wishes

Intercedes during a crisis on client's behalf by connecting them to immediate and
necessary resources (e.g., homeless shelters, soup kitchens, mental health crisis line, etc.)

Organizes in/out patient treatment for incarcerated individuals, along with transportation

Assists in completion of applications for community resources deemed necessary for the
best legal outcome (i.e. assisting with Medicaid applications, housing program applications, etc.)

Community Outreach/Advocacy:

Develops relationships with providers to increase positive outcomes for clients



Participates in related community meetings to advocate for change and greater
collaboration for the benefit of clients

Trains attorneys and other staff in specific topic areas when directed by the office's
Managing Attorney, as long as this is in the social worker's scope of practice

Maintains a working relationship with local corrections facilities and courts

Client InterviewiDg and Assessment:

Uses interviewing techniques to assess immediate client needs and opportunity for
intervention in crisis situations

Recommends the use of experts for clients who require further evaluation

Conducts alternative treatment investigation and/or social history investigation

Interviews client's family members, friends, when guided by the attorney, in order to
develop a client history

Completes baseline assessments (competency, mental health status, etc.) in order to
dcterniine appropriateness for a referral to an expert or provide information for attorney use

Confidentiality:

The attorney-client privilege is unique to that profession. The privilege extends to people
working as agents of attorneys or as employees of the law firm. The social worker is an
employee of NHPD and NHPD considers the social worker an agent of the attorney assigned to
the case. However, it is not settled in law as to whether or not this same privilege applies to
social workers working as agents of attorneys because of their own mandatory reporting laws.
Generally, social workers in New Hampshire must report any suspected or confirmed abuse or
neglect of children, the elderly, or the disabled. Additionally, they must break confidentiality
when there is imminent threat of harm to self or an identified person(s).

Social workers at the NHPD will be privy to confidential legal, medical, and mental
health information. Social workers must maintain the highest level of confidentiality, exercising
tact when interfacing with local resources on behalf of a client, so as not to jeopardize *a client's
legal case or violate their protected rights. Social workers at NHPD must exercise caution if they
find themselves in a position where they believe their duty of confidentiality and mandatory
reporting laws are in conflict. They should first report to the assigned attorney to determine if the
information is related to a closed charge, one pending or already under investigation, or a new
issue. If this is a new issue, the discussion regarding the next step will continue with the office's
Managing Attorney, followed by NHPD Administration. The process will move swiftly, since it
is possible that the issue could be time-sensitive.

Education and Experience:
i_

A Bachelor's Degree in Social Work is required for the Bachelor level position, a
Master's Degree for the MSW position. (MSW position also supervises social work interns.)



Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities;

Proficiency in using a variety of computer software applications, especially Microsoft
Word and Excel. Poise, discretion and a high level of inteipersonal skills to handle sensitive and
confidential situations and documentation, as well as maintain effective working relationships
within and outside the program.'Attention to detail in composing, typing and proofing materials,
establishing priorities and meeting deadlines. Excellent telephone and oral communication skills.
Must be able to work in a fast-paced environment with demonstrated ability to juggle multiple
competing tasks and demands.


